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The Mayor of London  
City Hall 
The Queen's Walk  
London  
SE1 2AA 
 
3 July 2017 
 
Dear Mayor Khan, 
 
I’m following up on my letter dated 19th June.  
 
As I said in that letter, we are wholly sensitive to the current priorities, but just for 
once the issue relating to the Garden Bridge is binary: with your support, we believe 
that we can see a way ahead to build it; without it we do not believe that it is either 
practical or right to proceed.   
 
Since your announcement on 28 April we have also, inevitably, received enquiries 
from donors, other supporters and the public as to the status of the project, and we 
do now need to be clear about that. 
 
As discussed with your Chief of Staff, the potential guarantor is the Government. 
They also ask, however, whether the project has your support, and an answer to that 
question is a pre-requisite to more detailed discussions with them.  
 
There will still be details to work out, and that will include revised plans to take 
account of the further delay in seeking an alternative guarantor subsequent to your 
decision not to confirm the GLA in that role. Re-making those plans, does, however, 
have a cost, and that is a cost that cannot be justified if we cannot break into the 
loop of Government and the GLA both asking the Trust to seek assurance about the 
position of each other. 
 
At this stage, therefore, we just need to know whether, subject to Government 
stepping in as guarantor, and the Trust tabling revised detailed plans for execution 
(including the readiness of Lambeth, Westminster, the PLA and Coin Street to act as 
required – in respect of which we ask only for an early re-run of the meeting 
convened by David Bellamy back in April), the Garden Bridge project will then 
receive your whole-hearted support.       
 
Recognising how busy you will be, and having received no reply to my earlier letter, 
I think we now have to put this on a default basis and say that if we haven’t heard 
from you in response to that letter by this Friday, 7 July, then we must assume that 
the bridge does not have your support and we will implement plans for drawing the 
project to a close and for the communications necessarily associated with that. 
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Alternatively, or as well, I would repeat that I’m available to meet with you at almost 
any time to discuss the future of this project, which my fellow Trustees and I will 
always remain convinced would be (or would have been) a real and lasting asset to a 
city that is open to all. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Lord Davies of Abersoch  
Chairman of the Garden Bridge Trust 
 
Cc Rt Hon Chris Grayling MP, Secretary of State for Transport  
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Paul Robinson

From: Andrew J. Brown
Sent: 14 August 2017 11:15
To: David Bellamy
Subject: RE: Letter for the attention of Sadiq Khan, Mayor of London
Attachments: 2016-10-03 Bee Emmott reply to Alex Williams re variation.pdf; 2016-10-06 Alex Williams reply 

to Bee Emmott re spend to date.pdf

David, 
 
Of course. I am not by any measure an expert in company law but my understanding is that they will now 
carry out a winding up process that involves taking stock of all their assets, paying off creditors, and 
finalising their accounts. 
 
The part we need to worry about is the £9 million underwriting that the DfT agreed to provide the Trust 
last year. There are a few options for how we approach this, which I’ll discuss with Fiona on Thursday. 
 
Some more detail below ‐ I hope it all makes sense but please let me know if not. 
 
Thanks 
 
Andy 
 

 
 
 
Key points about the £9m underwriting: 
 

a) None of it has been paid to the Trust yet and they will now need to make a claim against that £9m. 

b) It comes from the Government’s share of money, not ours. 

c) But it is sat in our bank account, so we will need to handle the process of paying any money to the 
Trust. 

d) There are conditions they need to meet in order to ask for any of the £9m ‐ see the attached letter 
exchange from last year. The most important of these is that they have to demonstrate how it is 
made up of proper, legal obligations on the Trust to creditors. 

e) While we hold the money, we won’t be paying anything to them unless we’ve agreed that payment 
with the DfT. 

f) Early indications from the Trust are that they’ll be seeking something like c.£8.5m ‐ and that if we 
don’t give them what they’re asking for they will be insolvent (which makes winding up much harder 
for them). We’ll have to see how it plays out but I am expecting some tough inspection of the Trust’s 
evidence before they get any agreement from the DfT. 

g) The Trust’s main needs for the £9m are: 
 To pay contractual termination payments to their contractors - primarily Bouygues 
 To pay back private funders who had agreed to release grant money before the 

beginning of construction, on the condition that it be paid back if the project never made 
it to construction - I have never been given a list of these funders 



2

 
Total public expenditure 
 

 Separate from the £9m, we have spent (ourselves and in grant payments) a total of £37.4m 
(I usually say ‘approximately £37m’). So if the Trust get what they want then I would expect 
the final outlay to run to £46m. 

 
 Of that £46m, approximately £24m is TfL money and £22m will be DfT money. 
 
 (The DfT initially gave us £30m, so we could then reasonably expect them to seek to get 

their money back by reducing a future Transport Grant to TfL by c.£8m.) 
  
 
 

From: David Bellamy [mailto: ]  
Sent: 14 August 2017 10:38 
To: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Subject: RE: Letter for the attention of Sadiq Khan, Mayor of London 
 
Thanks Andy.  It might be worth you just dropping a couple of bullets on what happens next (at a very high level) 
into an email, as we will be asked. 
 
David.  
 

From: Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs)  ]  
Sent: 14 August 2017 10:36 
To: David Bellamy  >; Fiona Fletcher‐Smith  > 
Subject: RE: Letter for the attention of Sadiq Khan, Mayor of London 
 

Thanks David ‐ I have had that through from your press team as well (along with the announcement the 
Trust have just put out, attached) 
 
I think they’ve got all their lines sorted out etc. but if I can help at all then of course please give me a shout
 
I have a slot booked with Fiona later in the week as well, when we can talk about what happens next 
procedurally 
 
Andy 
 

 
 
 

From: David Bellamy [mailto ]  
Sent: 14 August 2017 10:33 
To: Fiona Fletcher-Smith; Brown Andy (Corporate Affairs) 
Subject: FW: Letter for the attention of Sadiq Khan, Mayor of London 
 
FYI. 
 

From:  @gardenbridge.london]  
Sent: 14 August 2017 10:02 
To:     
Cc:   Laura Hurley  dft.gsi.gov.uk>; David 






